
 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
June 2, 2014 

7:00 P.M. 
Council Chambers 

Town Hall 
85 Union Street 

 
Pledge of Allegiance  
 
Roll Call  
 
Acknowledgment that meeting was properly noticed 
 
Public Comment  
 
Correspondence  
 
Council Committee Updates  
 
Adjustments to the Agenda  
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
a) Nomination to the MMA Legislative Policy Committee and ideas for legislation (Action 

possible)  
b) Election reminder for June 10th Primary and School Budget Validation Referendum 
c) Update on the Town Manager search, with a public forum set for June 23rd 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
67. The Town Council will hear public comments on the following Special Amusement 

Licenses, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 
 
Special Amusement 
MCM Corp 
D/B/A: Hacienda Pancho Villa Mexican Restaurant Fernando Saldana 
164 Pleasant Street 
 

1337 Beer LLC 
D/B/A: Ebenezer’s Brew Pub (New Name) Christopher & Jennifer Lively 
112 Pleasant Street 

JJ & M LLC 
D/B/A: Benchwarmers Sports Pub Jennifer Lewis 

1 
 



212 Maine Street 
 

Jimbo’s Catering 
D/B/A: 1898 Bar & Grill James Gallant 
165 River Road 

PUBLIC HEARING/ACTION 
 
68. The Town Council will hear public comments on a “Resolution Amending the 2013-14 

Budget to Appropriate an Additional $150,000 for the Purpose of the Designing, 
Renovating, Equipping and Occupancy of the McLellan Building for Municipal Use,” 
and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 

PUBLIC HEARING/ACTION 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
69. The Town Council will consider electing to exercise jurisdiction over the Bowdoin 

College Solar Array application for a Special Permit approved by the Planning Board on 
May 27th, and will take any appropriate action.  (Councilor Favreau) 

ACTION 
 
70. The Town Council will consider approving the Pledge for the “International Charter for 

Walking” statement, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 
ACTION 

 
71. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Town’s Boards and Committees, 

and will take any appropriate action. (Appointments Committee) 
ACTION 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

a) Approval of the Minutes of May 19, 2014 
b) Approval of the Minutes of May 15, 2014 
c) Approval of utility permits from  Maine Natural Gas for sections of Alder Drive, 

Tamarack Drive, Magnolia Lane, Huckleberry Lane, and Walnut Lane 
 
  

2 
 



Brunswick Town Council 
Agenda  

June 2, 2014 
Council Notes and Suggested Motions 

 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE UPDATES  
 
Councilors with information on the Committees they are involved with will share information 
with the Council and public. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
a) Nomination to the MMA Legislative Policy Committee and ideas for legislation (Action 

Possible) This is the Council’s opportunity to make a nomination for a position on this 
Committee that is not exclusive to Brunswick, but can be a Brunswick official.  Currently, 
Abbe Yacoben of Freeport and Elinor Multer of Harpswell share that position on the 
Committee.  You are not required to provide a nomination, and you will appoint to the 
position that solely belongs to Brunswick at a future time.   In addition, MMA is looking for 
ideas for MMA’s 2015-2016 Legislative Agenda.  If any Councilors have ideas you can 
either provide them at the meeting or via email to Fran Smith so they can be finalized prior to 
the deadline of June 20th.  If necessary, we can bring this item back at your June 16th meeting 
for further discussion, if needed, prior to submitting ideas to MMA.   Copies of the 
information on nominations and ideas are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion: 
The Council can opt to provide names for nominations, but are not required.   The 
nominee(s) must complete a form giving consent to serve if selected. 

 
b) Election reminder for June 10th Primary and School Budget Validation Referendum:  This is 

a reminder of the election:  Absentee ballots are available until Thursday, June 5th in the 
Town Clerk’s office.  On Thursday, the office will be open until 7:00 p.m., with normal 
hours 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.  The polls are open 7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. at the Junior High 
School, 65 Columbia Avenue. 

 
Suggested motion:  None is required. 

 
c) Update on the Town Manager search, with a public forum set for June 23rd:  This item is to 

inform the public that the Council will hold a public forum to get input regarding the Town 
Manager search.   

 
Suggested motion:  None is required. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
67. This item is the required public hearing on renewal Special Amusement Licenses for 

Hacienda Pancho Villa Mexican Restaurant, Ebenezer’s Brew Pub (formerly Lion’s 

3 
 



Pride), Benchwarmers Sports Pub, and 1898 Bar and Grill.  Copies of the public hearing 
notice and applications, with planned activities listed, are included in your packet. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to approve Special Amusement Licenses for Hacienda Pancho Villa Mexican 
Restaurant, Ebenezer’s Brew Pub (formerly Lion’s Pride), Benchwarmers Sports Pub, 
and 1898 Bar and Grill. 
 

68. This item is the required public hearing on the “Resolution Amending the 2013-14 
Budget to Appropriate an Additional $150,000 for the Purpose of the Designing, 
Renovating, Equipping and Occupancy of the McLellan Building for Municipal Use.” 
This resolution will authorize the additional funds needed to cover the expenses beyond 
the original approved amounts.  The process for amending the budget is outlined in the 
Town Charter Section 504.  Upon the recommendation of the Town Manager, the Town 
Council may amend the budget. The Council shall hold a public hearing at least 10 days 
prior to the adoption of any amendment. Any amendment that seeks to increase the 
amount of the total budget appropriations for the year shall only be made from 
unappropriated available revenue.  Copies of a memo from Mr. Eldridge, the draft 
resolution, and public hearing notice which appeared in the newspaper on May 22nd, are 
included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
There is no action at this meeting since the Charter requires at least ten days from the 
date of the public hearing to amend the budget.  This item will come back to the Council 
for action at the June 16th meeting. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
69. This item is sponsored by Councilor Favreau for the Council to consider electing to 

exercise or not exercise jurisdiction over the Bowdoin College Solar Array application 
for a Special Permit approved by the Planning Board.  In addition to Development 
Review approval, a Special Permit was required for approval of the Bowdoin College 
Solar Array application.  The proposed use, a renewable energy generating system as a 
principal use, is an omitted use in the Brunswick Zoning Ordinance and as such, requires 
a Special Permit.  During the review process, staff missed a public hearing notification 
deadline for the Planning Board’s Public Hearing, thereby delaying action by the 
Planning Board by 2 weeks.   By ordinance, a public hearing is required for all Special 
Permit applications and requires a 10-day notification period, compared to the 7-day 
required notification for any other larger-scale major development review proposals.   As 
Special Permit requests are not submitted very often, staff assumed the same public 
hearing notification timeframe applied but caught the error in time to remove the solar 
array project from the Planning Board meeting agenda.  Consequently, the project was 
rescheduled for consideration by the Planning Board 2 weeks later than originally 
scheduled. 
 

4 
 



Section 701.1.G. gives the Town Council 30 days from the date of Planning Board 
approval of the Special Permit to exercise jurisdiction over the application.  If Council 
exercises jurisdiction by a majority vote, the Council must then schedule a public hearing 
at which time it may ratify, reverse or modify the decision on Planning Board.  If Council 
considers exercising jurisdiction and refrains from doing so within the 30 days, the 
Planning Board’s decision is deemed ratified by the Council.  Either way, the required 
30-day review period by Town Council would be shortened by either action of Council.  
Staff recommends Town Council consider exercising jurisdiction over the Special Permit 
application.   The approved findings of fact and staff memo are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Option 1: Motion to exercise jurisdiction over the Bowdoin College Solar Array 
application for a Special Permit approved by the Planning Board on May 27, 2014, and 
set a public hearing for June 16, 2014. 
OR 
Option 2: Motion to not exercise jurisdiction over the Bowdoin College Solar Array 
application for a Special Permit approved by the Planning Board on May 27, 2014. 

 
70. This item is for the Council to consider approving the Pledge from the “International 

Charter for Walking.”  This request comes from the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee.  This pledge does not require the Town to spend any money nor mandate any 
specific actions.  Rather, it sets forth a series of principles and recommended actions – 
most of which the Town appears to be pursuing or implementing already.  Copies of a 
memo from Jeremy Doxsee and the pledge, along with supporting materials, are included 
in your packet. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to approve the Pledge for the “International Charter for Walking.” 

 
71. At this time the Appointments Committee will make nominations to fill vacancies on 

Town Boards and Committees.  Copies of the applications are included in your packet. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
Nominations will be made, with no seconds required, and the Council will then vote on 
the nominations. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

d) Approval of the Minutes of May 19, 2014:  A copy of the minutes is included in your 
packet.  Please note the minutes reflect the time the discussion on each item began. 

e) Approval of the Minutes of May 15, 2014:  A copy of the minutes is included in your 
packet. 

f) Approval of utility permits for Maine Natural Gas for sections of Alder Drive, Tamarack 
Drive, Magnolia Lane, Huckleberry Lane, and Walnut Lane:  Copies of the memo and 
permits are included in your packet. 

 

5 
 



In application ULP 2014-07, Alder Drive  Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to 
install a 2” gas main from the existing gas main located on the west side of Sumac Drive, 
the proposed gas main will run easterly across Sumac Drive to the sidewalk on the north 
side of Alder Drive, continuing under the sidewalk to Tamarack Drive. Approximately 
625 feet of 2” gas main. 

 
In application ULP 2014-08, Tamarack Drive   Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to 
install a 2” gas main from the proposed gas main to be located on the north side of Alder 
Drive at Tamarack Drive. The new gas main will run from the proposed gas main outside 
the pavement behind the curb around the full circle of Tamarack Drive back to the point 
of beginning. Approximately 2500 feet of 2” gas main. 
 
In application ULP 2014-09, Magnolia Lane   Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to 
install a 2” gas main from the proposed gas main to be located on the south side of 
Magnolia Lane at Tamarack Drive. The new gas main will run from the proposed gas 
main outside the pavement behind the curb around to the back side of the cul-de-sac on 
Magnolia Lane. Approximately 300 feet of 2” gas main. 
 
In application ULP 2014-10, Huckleberry Lane  Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization 
to install a 2” gas main from the proposed gas main to be located on the east side of 
Huckleberry Lane at Tamarack Dr. The new gas main will from run the proposed gas 
main outside the pavement behind the curb around to the back side of the cul-de-sac on 
Huckleberry Lane. Approximately 300 feet of 2” gas main. 
 
In application ULP 2014-11, Walnut Lane  Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to 
install a 2” gas main from the proposed gas main to be located on the north side of 
Walnut Lane at Tamarack Drive. The new gas main will run from the proposed gas main 
outside the pavement behind the curb around to the back side of the cul-de-sac on Walnut 
Lane. Approximately 325 feet of 2” gas main. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

6 
 



 
 

 
MANAGER REPORT A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 





















 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - B 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - C 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
ITEM 67 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 

























 
 

 
ITEM 68 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
TO:  Town Council 
  Town of Brunswick, Maine 
 
FROM:  John Eldridge 
  Finance Director 
 
DATE:  May 29, 2014 
 
RE:  Town Hall Project  
 
 
Attached please find: 
 

 The proposed budget amendment appropriating an additional $150,000 for the Town Hall Project. 
 The project budget that was provided to the Town Council on February 22, 2014. 
 The project expenditures to date, which also includes an estimate of the remaining Project 

expenditures. 
 
Currently we do not expect to expend the entire supplemental appropriation.  We expect to have better 
estimates of the remaining expenditures for the next Council meeting.  As the Charter requires that there 
be at least ten days between the public hearing and adoption of a budget amendment, the Council could 
adopt the amendment at its June 16th meeting or at a later meeting in June.   
 
 
Attachments 



 
Page 1 

 
O:\Finance\Capital Projects\Projects\McLellan Building\Funding\2013-14 Budget Amendment McLellan.docx  

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 
 
 

Resolution Amending the 2013-14 Budget to Appropriate an Additional $150,000 for the Purpose of 
the Designing, Renovating, Equipping and Occupancy of the McLellan Building for Municipal Use 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Brunswick (the “Town”) adopted a budget for the 2013-14 fiscal year (the 
“Budget”); and 
 
WHEREAS, on May 23, 2013 the Town Council adopted a Capital Budget resolution which included 
$50,000 to fund planning and designing activities related to renovations of the McLellan Building so that 
the building could be converted to municipal uses (the “Project”); and 
 
WHEREAS, on November 18, 2013 the Town Council appropriated and authorized the expenditure of 
up to $950,000 from available unassigned General Fund revenues for the Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, on January 13, 2014 Bowdoin College redirected the remainder of its FY 2013-14 
contribution to the Town totaling $61,100, and contributed an additional $20,000 for a total of $81,100 to 
be used toward the purchase of a generator for the McLellan Building; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Acting Town Manager has determined that the $81,100 funds from Bowdoin College 
should be accepted and appropriated for the stated purpose; and 
 
WHEREAS, during the renovating and equipping of the McLellan Building for municipal use, certain 
unanticipated costs were encountered; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Acting Town Manager has reported that funding should also be provided for the costs of 
moving and setup of Town offices in the McLellan Building; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Acting Town Manager has determined that it is necessary to appropriate an additional 
$168,900 to fund costs not previously funded; and 
 
WHEREAS, section 504 of the Charter of the Town of Brunswick provides a method for amending the 
Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council has held a public hearing on the proposed amendments to the Budget  at 
least ten days prior to the adoption of this resolution; 
 
NOW THEREFORE THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION IS ADOPTED: 
 

Section 1.  Funding Sources and Appropriations. 
 

a. A sum of eighty-one thousand and one hundred dollars ($81,100) from Bowdoin College 
is accepted by the Town and appropriated towards the cost of the generator for the 
building.  
 



 
Page 2 

 
O:\Finance\Capital Projects\Projects\McLellan Building\Funding\2013-14 Budget Amendment McLellan.docx  

b. A sum not to exceed one hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($150,000) from the Town’s 
Unassigned Fund Balance is appropriated to fund additional costs related to the Project. 

 
 

Section 2.  Authorization to Develop, Construct, and Equip the Project.  The Town Manager 
is authorized to negotiate, execute, and deliver, in the name of and on behalf of the Town, such contracts, 
agreements, and other documents and certificates as the Town Manager may determine to be necessary or 
appropriate in connection with the McLellan Building Project.  The aforementioned items shall be in such 
form and contain such terms and conditions as may be approved by the Town Manager.  Such approval 
shall be conclusively evidenced by the Town Manager’s execution thereof, provided however, that the 
Town Manager may delegate the authority granted hereunder as the Town Manager deems appropriate. 
 

Section 3.  Project Costs Defined.  The term “cost” or “costs” as used herein and applied to the 
McLellan Building Project, or any portion thereof, includes: 

 
a. the cost of planning, architecture, engineering, legal, and other professional services 

related to the McLellan Building Project;  
b. the costs related to applying for and obtaining all permits, licenses, and related regulatory 

reviews related to the McLellan Building Project; 
c. the cost of constructing the McLellan Building Project, and all costs determined by the 

Town Manager to be necessary to place the McLellan Building Project in service and 
ready for its intended use, including but not limited to, the cost of off-site improvements, 
and the cost of all labor, materials, building systems, machinery and equipment;  

d. the costs of equipping the McLellan Building Project for its intended use including all 
furniture and fixtures, all fixed or mobile equipment; 

e. the cost of insuring the McLellan Building Project while under construction as the Town 
Manager determines is related to the McLellan Building Project; 

f. the cost of moving and setting up Town offices in the McLellan Building;  
g. the cost of application fees, legal, accounting, and other fees related to the McLellan 

Building Project;  
h. any other costs identified in the McLellan Building Project budget, and the cost of any 

other items or services deemed to be costs under generally accepted accounting principles 
(“GAAP”) as determined by the Town’s Finance Director. 

 
Section 4. Other Actions Authorized.  Any actions taken to date by the Town Manager in 

connection with the planning, renovation and putting into service phases of the McLellan Building 
Project, are hereby ratified, confirmed, and approved. 
 

Section 5. Lapse of Balances.  Upon a determination by the Finance Director that the McLellan 
Building Project is complete or abandoned, any remaining balance in the project account shall lapse to the 
Town’s General Fund. 
 
 
 
Proposed to Town Council: May 19, 2014 
Public Hearing:    
Adopted by Town Council: 
 



Project Funding

Town Council appropriation 5/23/2013 50,000.00            

Town Council appropriation 11/18/2013 950,000.00          

Bowdoin contribution for generator 1/13/2014 61,100.00             unrestricted redirected

Bowdoin contribution for generator 1/13/2014 20,000.00             additional contribution

Total Project Funding 1,081,100.00      

Project Expenditures

Construction

Construction Contract 903,263.00          

Less Construction Contingency (43,192.00)           Credit for $43,192 contingency

Add Alt 1 ‐ Generator 91,618.75            

Approved Change Orders 18,102.37            

Written Change Orders (not yet approved) 9,907.70               Millwork changes; Raise water service pipe

Pending Change Orders 7,759.64               HVAC commissioning

Developing Change Orders 10,000.00             HVAC controls on generator; communication service; 

Total Construction 997,459.46          

Design & Engineering

Design & Engineering (Scott Simons Architects ‐ SSA) 88,769.00            

Additional services (SSA ‐ Add Alt 1) 1,857.50              

Reimbursable expenses (estimate) 2,500.00              
Furnishing Design Fee (Office Pavilion ‐ estimate) 1,000.00              

Total Design & Engineering 94,126.50            

Fixtures & Furnishings

Shelving for vault (PO) 14,485.00            

Security System (quote) 8,228.00              

Printing and Framing of Historical photos (estimate) 2,000.00              
Signs (estimate) 4,500.00               $1,500 allowance contract for interior signs.

Total Fixture & Furnishings 29,213.00            

Furniture & Equipment

Furniture (new and assembly of existing) 22,602.00             Pavilion quote ‐ need to review.

Chairs for Chamber (PO) 6,301.80               Pavilion

Chairs for conference room (PO) 2,376.00               WB Mason

Floor mats for desks (32) 2,560.00              

Total Furniture & Equipment 33,839.80            

Project Related Expenditures

Moving furniture and contents (estimate) 12,500.00             Town Hall and Brunswick Landing

Project management (quote) 3,500.00              
IT Assistance (quote) 5,280.00               Servers Down/Up; Telephones redirected

Total related expenses 21,280.00            

Project Contingency

Additional Construction Contingency 3.0% 29,923.78            
Non Construction Contingency 15.0% 26,768.90            

Total Additional Contingency 56,692.68            

Total Project Expenditures 1,232,611.44      

Project Costs Under (Over) Funding (151,511.44)        

Municipal Building Project Budget

DRAFT

The information contained herein is  preliminary subject to revision and amendment.

O:\Finance\Capital Projects\Projects\McLellan Building\Budget\Municipal Bldg Project Budget.xlsx
Printed on: 2/21/2014

8:33 AM



Town of Brunswick

85 Union Street Building Project

Design & Fixtures & Furniture Project

Date Constr. Con Mgmt Furnishings & Equip Related Exp Contingency Vendor Description

2/22 budget 997,459.46    94,126.50    29,213.00    33,839.80    21,280.00    56,692.68  1,232,611.44

Rev. budget 997,459.46    94,126.50    29,213.00    33,839.80    21,280.00    55,181.24  1,231,100.00

9/12/2013 2,416.25      2,416.25         SCOTT SIMONS ARCHITECTS Schematic Design phase of

10/10/2013 13,416.07    13,416.07       SCOTT SIMONS ARCHITECTS MCLELLAN RENO DESIGN FEES

11/14/2013 28,988.86    28,988.86       SCOTT SIMONS ARCHITECTS 'Design Development

12/19/2013 18,047.21    18,047.21       SCOTT SIMONS ARCHITECTS MCLELLAN RENO            

1/9/2014 438.00          438.00             NORTHEAST SECURITY SYSTEM TEMP INSTALL AES RADIO‐AC

1/16/2014 7,155.91      7,155.91         SCOTT SIMONS ARCHITECTS MCLELLAN RENOVATION      

1/24/2014 25,141.35      25,141.35       WARREN CONSTRUCTION GROUP MCLELLAN RENOVATION      

1/31/2014 2,468.00      2,468.00         NORTHEAST SECURITY SYSTEM Security System for McLel

2/14/2014 5,110.79      5,110.79         SCOTT SIMONS ARCHITECTS 'Design Development

2/14/2014 1,857.50      1,857.50         SCOTT SIMONS ARCHITECTS 'Design Development

2/21/2014 6,301.80      6,301.80         CREATIVE OFFICE PAVILION  Chairs for Council Chambe

2/21/2014 207,909.91    207,909.91     WARREN CONSTRUCTION GROUP MCLELLAN RENO APP 2      

3/7/2014 4,987.32      4,987.32         SCOTT SIMONS ARCHITECTS MCLELLAN RENO 50% CONSTRU

3/14/2014 327,242.18    327,242.18     WARREN CONSTRUCTION GROUP MCLELLAN RENO APP 3      

3/28/2014 2,080.00      2,080.00         CREATIVE OFFICE PAVILION  DESIGN SERVICES/OFFICE FU

3/28/2014 14,485.00    14,485.00       DUPONT STORAGE SYSTEM INC new vault shelving       

3/28/2014 1,400.00      1,400.00         H. NICKERSON TRUCKING     MOVE TV3 2/27            

3/28/2014 43.75            43.75               HAMMOND LUMBER COMPANY    ITEMS FOR NEW TH         

3/28/2014 2,376.00      2,376.00         WB MASON COMPANY INC      CHAIRS FOR TH CONFERENCE 

3/28/2014 1,985.00      1,985.00         WELCH STENCIL COMPANY INC ADA SIGNAGE FOR NEW TH/DE

4/4/2014 5,000.00      5,000.00         NORTHEAST SECURITY SYSTEM Security System for McLel

4/11/2014 900.00          900.00             H. NICKERSON TRUCKING     MOVE COUNCIL CHAMBERS    

4/11/2014 303,618.51    303,618.51     WARREN CONSTRUCTION GROUP APPLICATION 4 ‐ MCLELLAN 

4/18/2014 599.00          599.00             AGREN APPLIANCE Refrigerator for new Town

4/18/2014 457.20          457.20             GRAYBAR ELECTRIC CO. Plenum rated cat 6 cable 

4/18/2014 1,917.67      1,917.67         WB MASON COMPANY INC      Chair mats for new Town H

4/18/2014 2,000.56      2,000.56         WELCH STENCIL COMPANY INC FACILITY SIGNS           

4/25/2014 120.00          120.00             PEJEPSCOT HISTORICAL SOCI SCANNED PHOTOS FOR NEW TH

5/2/2014 13,154.00    13,154.00       BISSON TRANSPORTATION moving 28 Federal to 85 U

5/2/2014 17,602.45    17,602.45       CREATIVE OFFICE PAVILION  FURNITURE FOR NEW TH/ASSE

5/9/2014 718.53          718.53             SALSBURY INDUSTRIES       Mailbox PEDESTAL DR

5/9/2014 150.00          150.00             ALAN J. BUONAIUTO         TOWN HALL BANNERS (3)    

5/9/2014 2,050.00      2,050.00         ALAN J. BUONAIUTO         TH SIGN W/ GRANITE POSTS 

5/9/2014 1,319.67      1,319.67         WB MASON COMPANY INC      33 REPLACEMENT MATS      

5/9/2014 (1,121.67)     (1,121.67)        WB MASON COMPANY INC      CREDIT FOR FIRST SET OF M

5/9/2014 199.95          199.95             WB MASON COMPANY INC      5 ADDITIONAL CHAIRMATS   

5/16/2014 90.00            90.00               NORTHEAST SECURITY SYSTEM 4/29/14 HUMAN SERV MOVE T

5/23/2014 92,128.34      92,128.34       WARREN CONSTRUCTION GROUP APP#5 MCLELLAN           

5/23/2014 1,200.00      1,200.00         H. NICKERSON TRUCKING     MOVING HUMAN SERVICES 4/2

3,500.00      3,500.00         SYSTEMS ENGINEERING S/E PROJECT MGT

1,080.00      1,080.00         SYSTEMS ENGINEERING NET ADMIN/MOVE ASSISTANCE

7,131.25      7,131.25         SYSTEMS ENGINEERING SE RESOURCES FOR TH MOVE

2,853.00      2,853.00         MISC OPEN POS

2,168.00      2,168.00         NORTHEAST SECURITY SYSTEM RELOCATE CCTV TO MCLELLAN

2,111.96      2,111.96         CREATIVE OFFICE PAVILION HUM SERV/FIN WORKSTATIONS

3,454.58      3,454.58         CREATIVE OFFICE PAVILION CONFERENCE TABLES

30,000.00      30,000.00       WCG MAY

13,000.00    13,000.00       SCOTT SIMONS BALANCE

Totals 986,040.29    97,059.91    33,368.04    34,162.41    30,623.25    ‐              1,181,253.90

Balance 11,419.17      (2,933.41)    (4,155.04)    (322.61)        (9,343.25)    55,181.24  49,846.10      

ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES BELOW THIS LINE

O:\Finance\Capital Projects\Projects\McLellan Building\Budget\Project costs 5/29/2014



 
 

 
ITEM 69 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 
 
May 28, 2014 
 
 
Memo to: Brunswick Town Council 
  John Eldridge, CPFO, Interim Town Manager 
 
From:    Anna Breinich, FAICP 
 
Subject: Planning Board Special Permit Approval 
 
 
On May 27, 2014, the Planning Board voted unanimously (7-0) to approve a Special Permit application 
submitted by Solar City on behalf of Bowdoin College, for the installation of a 655 Kilowatt solar 
photovoltaic system and 200’ gravel access drive, on land formerly part of the Brunswick naval Air 
Station and conveyed to the College (Map 40, Lot 90).  The use is located in the College Use/Town 
Conservation (CU/TC) Zoning District.  A Special Permit is required as the use, a renewable energy 
generating system as a principal use, is considered an omitted use in the current Brunswick Zoning 
Ordinance.   
 
Section 701.1.G of the Zoning Ordinance gives the Town Council 30 days from the day the Planning 
Board approves the Special Permit to exercise jurisdiction over the application. If the Council decides to 
exercise jurisdiction by a majority vote of the Council at a public meeting, it shall hold a public hearing 
and may ratify, reverse or modify the decision of the Planning Board.  If the Town Council does not 
exercise jurisdiction within 30 days, the Planning Board’s decision shall be deemed ratified by the Town 
Council.  
 
Attached to this memo are the Special Permit Findings of Fact approved by the Planning Board on May 
27, 2014.  
 
 
Cc: Charlie Frizzle, Chair, Planning Board 
       Jeremy Doxsee, AICP, Town Planner 
 Jeff Hutchinson, Codes Enforcement Officer 
  

 

 
 

 
 

 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 

 

INCORPORATED 1739 
 

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
85 UNION STREET 

BRUNSWICK, ME  04011 
 

 
 

 

ANNA M. BREINICH, FAICP PHONE: 207-725-6660 
DIRECTOR OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT FAX: 207-725-6663 



FINAL FINDINGS OF FACT 
Special Permit  

Bowdoin College Solar Array Facility 
Planning Board Review Date: May 27, 2014 

 
Project Name: Bowdoin College Solar Array Facility 

Address:  NA / Unaddressed BNAS Public Benefit Conveyance to College 

   Brunswick, ME  04011 
Case Number: 14-015 

Tax Map:  Map U15, Lot 130 

Zoning:  College Use/Town Conservation (CU/TC)  

Applicant:  Matt Gitt, SolarCity 

   24 St. Martin Drive, Building 2, Unit 11 

   Marlborough, MA 01752 

Authorized 
Representative: Same 

 
Staff reviewed the application and has made a determination of completeness.  

 
Pursuant to Chapter 2 Section I.2, any use that is an unclassified or omitted use and that 
is not otherwise prohibited in Chapter 3 is eligible for consideration based on the 
requirements of Section 701.  The proposed solar array installation is an 
unclassified/omitted use in the zoning ordinance; in accordance with Chapter 7, an 
unclassified or omitted use may be allowed upon the issuance of a Special Permit by the 
Planning Board and upon ratification by the Town Council as described in Section 701.1. 
 
The following standards set forth herein shall be applied, where applicable, by the 
Planning Board when considering an application for Special Permit. The burden of proof 
of compliance with these standards rests solely with the applicant.  
 
The application shall further the planning goals of the Planning Area (Appendix V) in 
which the property is located, as follows: 
 
V.2 Planning Area 
 

The College Use/Town Conservation District is designated as the College Use/Town 
Conservation Planning Area in accordance with Sections 105 and 106.  The College 
Use/Town Conservation Area is designated as a Growth Area. 

  
A. The College Use/Town Conservation Planning Area includes the west side of the 

Brunswick Naval Air Station that has been transferred to Bowdoin College by 
Public Benefit Conveyance in accordance with the recommendations of the 

 1 



adopted Reuse Master Plan and is designated for reuse, redevelopment, and 
development.   
 

B. The College Use/Town Conservation Planning Area includes the west side of the 
Brunswick Naval Air Station that has been transferred to the Town of Brunswick 
by Public Benefit Conveyance in accordance with the recommendations of the 
adopted Reuse Master Plan and is designated for conservation. 

 
The proposed Bowdoin College Solar Array is within the portion of the College 
Use/Town Conservation Planning Area designated for College Use. This Special 
Permit use will facilitate the reuse, redevelopment and development of the former 
Brunswick Naval Air Station  in accordance with the overall BNAS Reuse Master 
Plan and College Use/Town Conservation Planning Area.   The Planning Board 
finds the proposed use furthers the planning goals of the College Use/Town 
Conservation Planning Area. 

 
701.2 Standards for Special Permits 
 

B. The application is compatible in scale to its surroundings. In making this finding, 
the Planning Board shall consider the size and mass of buildings where new 
structures are being proposed, the number of employees, residents or customers, 
and the size and number of vehicles servicing the use.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, when the Special Permit is proposed for a pre-existing structure, the 
Planning Board may find that the proposed use is compatible with its 
surroundings, even though it is out of scale and design with such surrounding 
properties if the applicant can demonstrate that the proposal will achieve mutual 
benefits without compromising any of the standards found in this ordinance.  

 
The Special Permit use is for a passive solar array that will require minimal 
maintenance requiring a very limited number of vehicle trips per month, has 
minimal or no visibility from adjacent properties, and is located within a 
previously cleared area. .  There are no customers coming to the site; the closest 
residential property is approximately 350’ to the northwest, on Bickford Avenue. 
After completion of construction, site activity is expected to by imperceptible from 
abutting properties. The Planning Board finds that the use is compatible with 
the scale of its surroundings. 
 

C. The application is harmonious in design to its surroundings. In making this 
finding, the Planning Board shall consider building and window proportions, roof-
lines, spacing of doors and windows, as well as orientation to public streets.  

 
No new buildings are proposed.   The proposed solar array panels are considered 
pervious, and will be 8’ off the ground.  Given how far the project is from the 
nearest neighbor (approximately 350’ to the northwest, on Bickford Avenue), and 
given the perimeter tree line around the property, the solar array panels and 
infrastructure will not be visible from neighboring properties. The Planning 

 2 



Board finds the application is harmonious in design and compatible to the 
surrounding area.  

 
D. The application further maintains or enhances a pedestrian oriented character in 

planning districts where such character is encouraged. 
 
Not Applicable.  

 
E. The application will not violate any standard of this Ordinance.  

 
The Special Permit use does not violate any standard in the Zoning Ordinance. 
The Board finds that the application will not violate any standard in the Zoning 
Ordinance.  

 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Planning Board shall deny an application for a 
Special Permit if, in its determination, substantive, objective evidence from one or 
more persons entitled to notice is presented that reasonably demonstrates that: 

 
1.  The proposal will adversely affect the enjoyment or use of that person’s property. 
2.  The proposal will devalue such property. 

 
The Board finds that no person entitled to notice has presented substantive, 
objective evidence reasonably demonstrating that the proposed development will 
adversely affect the enjoyment of that person’s property or that it will devalue 
such property. 

 
APPROVED MOTIONS 

Special Permit  
Bowdoin College Solar Array Facility 

 
 
Motion 1: That the Special Permit application is considered complete. 
 
Motion 2: That the Special Permit is approved with the following condition: 
 

1. That the Board’s review and approval does hereby refer to these findings of fact, 
the plans and materials submitted by the applicant and the written and oral 
comments of the applicant, their representatives, reviewing officials, and 
members of the public as reflected in the public record. Any changes to the 
approved special permit  not called for in these conditions of approval or 
otherwise approved by the Director of Planning and Development as a minor 
modification shall require a review and approval in accordance with the 
Brunswick Zoning Ordinance. 

 
 

 3 



If the Planning Board votes to approve a Special Permit, that approval shall not take 
effect for 30 days after the Planning Board's vote. During that 30 day period, the Town 
Council may elect to exercise jurisdiction over the application. Decisions to exercise 
jurisdiction shall be made by a majority vote of the Town Council during a public 
meeting. If the Council exercises jurisdiction, it shall, after notice and hearing in the 
same manner as required for a zoning amendment under Section 108, ratify, reverse or 
modify the decision of the Planning Board. If the Town Council does not exercise 
jurisdiction within 30 days, then the decision of the Planning Board shall be deemed 
ratified by the Town Council. If the Planning Board denies an application for Special 
Permit, the Planning Board's decision shall not be subject to any appeal, but the 
applicant may apply to the Town Council for a zoning amendment as provided in Section 
108. 

 4 



 
EMAIL 1 
From: Langsdorf, Stephen E. F. 
Sent: Thursday, May 08, 2014 9:23 AM 
To: Anna Breinich 
Subject: Special Permits 
 
Anna,  you have asked me to clarify Section 701(G) of the zoning ordinance as to when a special 
permit takes effect after being granted by the Planning Board.  The ordinance allows a 30 day period 
for the Council to decide it wants to take jurisdiction by majority vote at a public meeting and 
review the permit.  The Council after notice and a public hearing may ratify, reverse or modify the 
decision. If the Council affirms the decision it is final after the vote is taken and it is not necessary to 
wait until 30 days from the planning board vote because there is no further action which may be 
taken at the municipal level.  Please let me know if you have questions. 
Stephen E. F. Langsdorf 
207.623.5300 Tel 
 
EMAIL 2 
Question: 
From: Anna Breinich [mailto:abreinich@brunswickme.org]  
Sent: Wednesday, May 28, 2014 10:05 AM 
To: Langsdorf, Stephen E. F. 
Cc: John Eldridge 
Subject: RE: Special Permits ‐ Additional Question 
Importance: High 
 
Hi Stephen, 
Per my call back request this morning, additional clarification/interpretation of this Special Permit 
subsection (701.G) has been requested.  If the Council, at their June 2nd meeting, considers 
exercising jurisdiction over the Planning Board approved Special Permit (approved last night) and 
then votes not to exercise jurisdiction, would the 30 days end or would it remain in effect to allow 
for reconsideration by Council during what remains of the 30 days? 
Thanks.  Anna 
 
Response: 
From: Langsdorf, Stephen E. F.  
Sent: Wednesday, May 28, 2014 2:20 PM 
To: Anna Breinich 
Cc: John Eldridge; Jeff Hutchinson 
Subject: RE: Special Permits ‐ Additional Question 
 
Anna,  It all depends on whether the Council takes action or not.  Once the Council has acted (even 
if action is a decision to not take action) final agency action has occurred so the permit is in 
effect.   If the Council does not make a decision to exercise jurisdiction the permit will not go into 
effect until 30 days has elapsed.  Please let me know if you need anything else.  Thanks, 
 
Stephen E. F. Langsdorf 
PretiFlaherty 



 
 

 
ITEM 70 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 





















 
 

 
ITEM 71 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE 
 
To: 
 Brunswick Town Council 

From:  
Gerald Favreau  
Chair Appointments Committee 

Date:  
May 21, 2014 

Fellow Councilors, 

On the evening of May 21, 2014, the Appointments Committee met to interview 
candidates/applicants for (2) Committees. 

Davis Fund Committee 
Sewer District Trustees 
 
The Appointments Committee is hereby (unanimously) recommending for appointments as 
follows: 

To the Davis Fund Committee:   
Marilyn Dwyer (Re-appointment) uncontested 
David Knight (Re-appointment) uncontested 
 
 
To the Brunswick Sewer District Board of Trustees: 
David Barbour (Reappointment) uncontested 
 
 
 
 



 
BRUNSWICK BOARD COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE CURRENT & UPCOMING OPENINGS FOR 2014 

 
The Brunswick Town Council will be holding interviews in February, for the following Board Commission and Committee vacancies 
listed below.  Interested citizens should complete an application form, available in the Town Clerk's Office.  Please return applications 
to the Town Clerk's Office by 4:30 P.M. on Monday, May 19, 2014, in order to be interviewed on Wednesday, May 21, 2014.  
 
Existing Vacancies on Boards Commissions and Committees 
 
Assessment Review Board  
 1 member – 3 year term to expire on 01/01/2017 
Conservation Commission 
 1 member – balance of 3 year term to expire on 05/01/2016 
Downtown & Outer Pleasant Street Master Plan Implementation Committee 
 1 member - Pleasant Street Business Owner 
Fair Hearing Authority 
 3 members – balance of 3 year terms to expire on 10/01/2014 
Marine Resource Committee  
 1 alternate member – Commercial Harvester - 3 year term to expire 05/01/2017 

1 alternate member – Non License holder balance of 3 year term to expire 05/01/2015 
Personnel Board  
 1 full member – balance of 3 year term to expire on 01/12/2015 
Recycling Committee 
 1 member – 3 year term to expire on 01/01/2017 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
 2 associate members – balance of 3 year terms to expire on 07/01/2016 
 1 associate member – balance of 3 year term to expire on 07/01/2015 
 
Upcoming vacancies for 2014  (Please apply at least one month prior to the month vacancy occurs – you may apply for an 
upcoming vacancy at any time) 
 
April 
Sewer District  
 1 members – 3 year term to expire on 04/01/2017 
May 
Marine Resource Committee 
 1 member – Non License Holder - 3 year term to expire on 05/01/2017 
Trust Fund Advisory Committee 
 1 member (citizen) – 3 year term to expire on 5/10/2017 
June 
Housing Authority 
 1 member (participant in program) – 5 year term to expire on 06/03/2019 
Davis Fund Committee 

2 members – 3 year terms to expire on 06/30/2017 
July 
Recreation Commission 
 1 member – 3 year term to expire on 07/01/2017 
September 
Water District - Brunswick 
 1 member – 3 year term to expire on 09/13/2017 
October 
Village Review Board 
 1 member (district resident) – 3 year term to expire on 10/20/2017 
 1 member (architect/historian) – 3 year term to expire on 10/20/2017 
December 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
 1 full member – 3 year term to expire on 12/18/2017 
 1 associate member – 3 year term to expire on 12/18/2017 



Summary of Received Applications 5/20/2014
Date of Application

Davis Fund Committee
DwyerMarilyn 74 Matthew Drive  725-7524 5/12/2014

Will this be a reappointment Yes MembershipType: Interview Time: Wed., May 21, 2014 at 6:15 p

KnightDavid 22 Page Street  798-4600 5/12/2014

Will this be a reappointment Yes MembershipType: Interview Time: Wednesday, May 21, 2014 at 

Sewer District Trustees
BarbourDavid 2 Micmac Ln  725-5644 4/22/2014

Will this be a reappointment Yes MembershipType: Interview Time: Wed, May 21, 2014 at 6:00 p

Tuesday, May 20, 2014 Page 1 of 1

















 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
May 19, 2014 

6:15 P.M. - Executive Session 
7:00 P.M. – Regular Meeting 

Council Chambers 
Town Hall 

85 Union Street 
 
 
Councilors Present: Chair Benet Pols, W. David Watson, Stephen S. Walker, Suzan Wilson, 

John M. Perreault, Gerald E. Favreau, Jane F. Millett, Sarah E. Brayman, 
and John Richardson, Jr. 

 
Councilors Absent: None 
 
Town Staff Present: John Eldridge, Finance Director/Interim Town Manager; Fran Smith, 

Town Clerk/Assistant to the Town Manager; John Foster, Public Works 
Director; Steve Langsdorf, Town Attorney; Terry Goan, Patrol Officer; 
and TV video crew 

 
Chair Pols called the meeting to order, and asked the Clerk for Roll Call.  
 
Executive Session: consultation with legal counsel regarding pending or contemplated 
litigation [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E)]   
 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to go into Executive Session per 1 
M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E) for a consultation with legal counsel regarding pending or 
contemplated litigation.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas.  
 
Meeting resumed at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Chair Pols resumed the meeting, acknowledged that the meeting was properly noticed, and led 
the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Public Comment None 
 
Correspondence (Time in meeting was 7:01 p.m.) 
 Letter from MDOT on Bath-Brunswick bridge replacement on Old Bath Road 
 
Mr. Eldridge spoke regarding the letter from MDOT. 
 
(Copies of letters from MDOT and their public hearing notice for this project will be attached to 
the official minutes.) 
 
 
 
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
May 19, 2014 
Page 2 
 
Council Committee Updates (Time in meeting was 7:03 p.m.) 
 
Reports were given on the following committees: Sidewalk committee, Master Plan 
Implementation Committee, Appointments Committee, and Town Manager Search 
Subcommittee. 
 
Adjustments to the Agenda  None  
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Financial Update (Time in meeting was 7:06 p.m.) 
 
Mr. Eldridge provided this update. 
 
(b) Approval of Nathaniel Davis Fund Committee recommendations (Action required) 

(Time in meeting was 7:10 p.m.) 
 
Sande Updegraph, 724 Durham Road and Chair of the Committee, presented the 
recommendations of the committee. 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to accept the recommendations for 
the Davis Fund’s 2013-2014 allocations as recommended by the Committee.  The motion 
carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the Committee’s minutes will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
(c) Report from Sewer District about plant upgrade (Time in meeting was 7:18 p.m.) 
 
Leonard Blanchette, General Manager of the Sewer District, gave this report.  He responded to 
questions from Mr. Eldridge, Councilor Richardson, who also spoke regarding this item, 
Councilor Millett, Councilor Favreau, Councilor Brayman, and Councilor Perreault. 
 
(A copy of Mr. Blanchette’s report will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
(d) Update on the establishment of quiet zones (Time in meeting was 7:42 p.m.) 
 
Mr. Foster spoke regarding this item and responded to questions from Chair Pols, Councilor 
Millett, and Councilor Perreault. 
 
(A copy of a memo from John Foster will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
58. The Town Council will hear public comments on a special amusement license for the 

following application, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) (Time in 
meeting was 7:51 p.m.) 

 
 



Town Council Minutes 
May 19, 2014 
Page 3 
 
 

 
Special Amusement 
Byrnes Irish Pub LLC 
D/B/A: Byrnes Irish Pub LL     Joe Byrnes 
16 Station Avenue 

 
Chair Pols opened the public hearing; hearing no comments, he closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to approve a special amusement 
license for Byrnes Irish Pub, 16 Station Avenue.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
59. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for June 2, 2014, on a 

“Resolution Amending the 2013-14 Budget to Appropriate an Additional $150,000 
for the Purpose of the Designing, Renovating, Equipping and Occupancy of the 
McLellan Building for Municipal Use,” and will take any appropriate action. 
(Manager) (Time in meeting was 7:52 p.m.) 

 
Mr. Eldridge introduced this item. 
 
Chair Pols moved, Councilor Wilson seconded, to set a public hearing for June 2, 2014, to 
adopt a “Resolution Amending the 2013-14 Budget to Appropriate an Additional $150,000 
for the Purpose of the Designing, Renovating, Equipping and Occupancy of the McLellan 
Building for Municipal Use.”  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
60. The Town Council will consider amending the “Town Boards, Commissions, and 

Committees Appointment Policy” to limit the boards included under Conflict of 
Interest Section 16(a), and will take any appropriate action.  (Appointments 
Committee) (Time in meeting was 7:57 p.m.) 

 
Councilor Walker said he would abstain as his wife is on the Sewer District Board and her 
position on the Board might be affected when it is time for her to apply for reappointment. 
 
Councilor Favreau introduced this item. 
 
Jonathan Crimmins, Jordan Avenue, spoke regarding this item. 
 
Chair Pols, Councilor Wilson, Councilor Millett, Councilor Richardson, Councilor Brayman, 
Councilor Perreault, Councilor Watson, and Mr. Langsdorf spoke regarding this item. 
 
Mr. Blanchette responded to questions from Councilor Favreau. 
 

 
 



Town Council Minutes 
May 19, 2014 
Page 4 
 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor Wilson seconded, to table this item until the 
Appointments Committee has reviewed it further.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas.  
Councilor Millett was opposed.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA   (Time in meeting was 8:23 p.m.) 

a) Approval of the Minutes of May 5, 2014 
b) Approval of utility permits for Maine Natural Gas for sections of Hemlock Road 

and Locust Lane 
c) Approval of beano games for Knights of Columbus  
d) Approval of MDOT Overweight Vehicle Agreement 
e) Approval of Games of Chance for the St. John’s Bazaar for June 13, June 14, and 

June 15, 2014 
 
Councilor Perreault and Councilor Millett spoke regarding this item. 
 
Ms. Smith and Mr. Eldridge spoke regarding this item and responded to questions from 
Councilor Millett and Councilor Perreault. 
 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Richardson seconded, to approve the Consent 
Agenda.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of materials for CA-B, CA-C, CA-D, and CA-E will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Chair Pols seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The motion 
carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:27 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES. THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
 
 
Frances Smith 
Town Clerk/Assistant to the Town Manager 
May 24, 2014 
 

June 2, 2014 
Date of Approval 

 
 

______________ 
Council Chair 

 

 
 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Draft  
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes– Special Meeting 
Budget Hearing 

May 15, 2014 
7:00 P.M. 

Council Chambers 
Town Hall 

85 Union Street 
 
Councilors Present: Chair Benet Pols, W. David Watson, Stephen S. Walker, John M. 

Perreault, Gerald E. Favreau, Jane F. Millett, Sarah E. Brayman, and John 
Richardson, Jr. 

 
Councilors Absent: Councilor Suzan Wilson  
 
Town Staff Present: John Eldridge, Finance Director/Interim Town Manager; Fran Smith, 

Town Clerk/Assistant to the Town Manager; Paul Perzanoski, 
Superintendent of Schools; Anna Breinich, Director of Planning and 
Development; Tom Farrell, Parks and Recreation Director; Richard Rizzo, 
Police Chief; Cathy Donovan, Assessor; Ken Brillant, Fire Chief; Marc 
Hagan, Deputy Police Chief; James Oikle, Business Manager for School 
Department; John Foster, Public Works Director; Linda Smith, Business 
Development Manager; Julie Henze, Deputy Finance Director; Terry 
Goan, Police Officer; and TV video crew 

 
Chair Pols called the meeting to order, led the Pledge of Allegiance, and asked the Clerk for Roll 
Call.  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
57. The Town Council will hear public comments regarding the proposed 2014-2015 

Municipal Budget and Capital Improvement Plan 2015-2019, and will take any 
appropriate action.  (Manager) 

 
Mr. Eldridge made the presentation regarding the current status of the proposed budget.  
 
(A copy of his presentation will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Chair Pols opened the public hearing. 
 
The following persons spoke regarding the budget: 
Michael Feldman, Harding Road 
Pem Schaeffer, 32 Crestview Lane  
Gerald Queally, CEO of Spectrum Generation 
Hunter Johnson, 32 Pollard Avenue  



Town Council Minutes 
May 15, 2014 
Page 2 
 
Stacy Frizzle, Executive Director of People Plus 
Kate Egan, President of Library Board of Trustees 
Reverend Richard Fisco, Lincoln Street  
 
Chair Pols closed the public hearing at 7:41 p.m. 
 
Paul Perzanoski listed the additional cuts made by the School Department. 
 
Councilor Perreault, Councilor Richardson, Chair Pols, and Councilor Brayman spoke regarding 
the budget. 
 
The Council discussed budget numbers and Mr. Eldridge responded to questions from Councilor 
Brayman, Councilor Walker, Councilor Millett, Chair Pols, Councilor Richardson, Councilor 
Watson and Councilor Favreau.   
 
Mr. Eldridge will refine the numbers and bring them back to the May 22nd workshop for Council 
direction. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:52 p.m. 
  
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES. THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
 
 
Frances Smith 
Town Clerk/Assistant to the Town Manager 
May 22, 2014 
 

June 2, 2014 
Date of Approval 

 
 

______________ 
Council Chair 

 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



 

Brunswick, Maine 
John A. Foster, PE 
Town Engineer/Director PWD 
e-mail:  foster@brunswickme.org 

Public Works Department 
9 Industry Road 
Brunswick, Maine  04011 
(207) 725-6654  
FAX (207) 725-6655 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

 TO: John Eldridge, Town Manager 

 FROM: John A. Foster, Director, PWD 

 DATE: May 22, 2014 

 SUBJECT: Utility Location Permits 
 

Attached, for presentation to the Town Council are five applications for Utility Location Permits 
received from Maine Natural Gas. 
 
In application ULP 2014-07, Alder Drive     Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to install a 2” 
gas main from the existing gas main located on the west side of Sumac Dr, the proposed gas main 
will run easterly across Sumac Dr to the sidewalk on the north side of Alder Dr, continuing under 
the sidewalk to Tamarack Dr. Approximately 625 feet of 2” gas main. 
 
In application ULP 2014-08, Tamarack Drive     Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to install 
a 2” gas main from the proposed gas main to be located on the north side of Alder Dr at 
Tamarack Dr. The new gas main will run from the proposed gas main outside the pavement 
behind the curb around the full circle of Tamarack Dr back to the point of beginning. 
Approximately 2500 feet of 2” gas main. 
 
In application ULP 2014-09, Magnolia Lane     Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to install a 
2” gas main from the proposed gas main to be located on the south side of Magnolia Ln at 
Tamarack Dr. The new gas main will run from the proposed gas main outside the pavement 
behind the curb around to the back side of the cul-de-sac on Magnolia Ln. Approximately 300 
feet of 2” gas main. 
 
In application ULP 2014-10, Huckleberry Lane     Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to 
install a 2” gas main from the proposed gas main to be located on the east side of Huckleberry Ln 
at Tamarack Dr. The new gas main will from run the proposed gas main outside the pavement 
behind the curb around to the back side of the cul-de-sac on Huckleberry Ln. Approximately 300 
feet of 2” gas main. 
 
In application ULP 2014-11, Walnut Lane     Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to install a 
2” gas main from the proposed gas main to be located on the north side of Walnut Ln at 
Tamarack Dr. The new gas main will run from the proposed gas main outside the pavement 
behind the curb around to the back side of the cul-de-sac on Walnut Ln. Approximately 325 feet 
of 2” gas main. 
 
Brunswick Public Works Department has no objection to these underground utility lines as proposed, 
providing it is approved subject to the following conditions: 

1. The final location is subject to adjustment, as determined necessary by the Town Engineer, to 
provide adequate clearance from any underground facilities located by field verification by 
each utility. 

2. All work is subject to compliance with the Town’s Street Opening and road restoration 
requirements. 



jhiggins
Typewritten Text

jhiggins
Typewritten Text
ULP2014-07



jhiggins
Typewritten Text
ULO2014-08



jhiggins
Typewritten Text
ULP2014-09



jhiggins
Typewritten Text
ULP2014-10



jhiggins
Typewritten Text
ULP2014-11












	mr a yes
	mr a mma stuff_20140529093023
	mr b no
	mr c no
	67 yes
	67 special amusement_20140529093138
	68 yes
	69 yes
	69 Special Permit Memo to Town Council
	69 FINAL_Special Permit_Findings of Fact_SolarCity_5.23.14 AB Final
	FINAL FINDINGS OF FACT
	Special Permit
	Bowdoin College Solar Array Facility
	Planning Board Review Date: May 27, 2014
	Staff reviewed the application and has made a determination of completeness.
	APPROVED MOTIONS
	Special Permit
	Bowdoin College Solar Array Facility

	69 Emails
	70 yes
	70 walking_20140529094026
	71 yes
	71 App comm report May 21, 2014
	71 App Committee May 21 meeting packet
	17-ThoseInterestCertainDateRange
	2014 Barbour D Sewer D_20140422111654
	2014 Dwyer M DAVIS F_20140512112007
	2014 KNight D Davis F_20140512143141

	ca a yes
	ca a May 19, 2014 min
	ca b yes
	ca  b May 15 2014min ph budget
	ca c yes
	CA c MaineNaturalGasUtilityLocationPermitApplications
	ManagerLocationNoticeMay222014.pdf
	Brunswick, Maine
	MEMORANDUM


	CA C UtilityLocationPermitPlans



